

# United States Attorneys' Bulletin



## Published by:

Executive Office for United States Attorneys, Washington, D.C. For the use of all U.S. Department of Justice Attorneys

I NO. 24

TABLE OF CONTENTS	Page
ÇOMMENDATIONS	727
POINTS TO REMEMBER Allegations of Misconduct Rules Governing Petitions for Executive Clemency	729 731
<pre>(Copy of Rules Governing Petitions for Executive Clemency is attached as an Appendix) Procedures for Handling Cases Referred by the Food and Drug Administration (Copy of Memorandum issued November 4, 1983, to the United States Attorneys from Mr. J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, is attached as an Appendix)</pre>	765
CASENOTES OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL Cases Recently Filed in the Supreme Court by the Solicitor General	7,33
CIVIL DIVISION D.C. Circuit, Sitting <u>En</u> <u>Banc</u> , Dismisses Tax- payers' Challenge To House And Senate Chap- lains For Failure To Raise A Substantial Constitutional Question, In Light Of Court's Decision In Nebraska Chaplain Case <u>Murray</u> v. <u>Buchanan</u>	735
D.C. Circuit Affirms Dismissal Of TRIS Manu- facturers' Tort Claims Against U.S. And CPSC Commissioners Jayvee Brand, Inc., v. United States	736
D.C. Circuit Affirms Division of Cable Tele- vision Copyright Fees For 1979, With "Important Exceptions"	
Christian Broadcasting Network, Inc., v. Copyright Royalty Tribunal	738
D.C. Circuit Upholds Delegation Order Of The National Mediation Board Authorizing The Sole Remaining Member To Exercise The Powers Of The Board While There Are Two Vacancies On The Board	
Railroad Yardmasters of America v. Harris	739

II VOL. 31

ĸ

DECEMBER 9, 1983

NO. 24

TABLE OF CONTENTS	Page
Tenth Circuit Holds That Plaintiffs In Class Action Challenging The Validity Of The New Mexico Social Security Disability Determi- nation Unit Are Not Entitled To A Waiver Of The Exhaustion Requirement Of U.S.C. 42 §405(g) Richard R. Bartlett v. Richard Schweiker	740
Eleventh Circuit Holds Postal Service Is Not Liable For A Criminal Act Committed In A Post Office Lobby By A Non-Employee Jane Doe v. United States	741
CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION District Court Rules In Higher Education Case United States v. Alabama	743
Federal Jury Convicts Defendants On Counts Relating To Assault On Black Man In Federal Park United States v. <u>Ramsey</u>	744
Federal Grand Jury Returns Indictment Against Defendants Charged With Interference With Housing Rights <u>United States</u> v. <u>Smith</u>	745
Federal Grand Jury Returns Indictment In Case Involving Death Of Chinese-American Clubbed To Death With Baseball Bat United States v. <u>Ebens and Nitz</u>	746
Defendants Who Were Offered Money To Gun Down Key Witnesses In Federal Narcotics Trial Convicted United States v. Grandison	746
Federal Grand Jury Returns Indictment Against Highway Patrolman After Two State Homicide Trials Resulted In Hung Juries United States v. <u>Gwaltney</u>	747
Federal Grand Jury Returns Indictment Against Defendants Charged With Involuntary Servitude United States v. Kozminski	747

VOL. 31	DECEMBER 9, 1983	III NO. 24
	TABLE OF CONTENTS	Page
Police Of Alcholic	and Jury Returns Indictment Against ficer In Case Involving Death Of Thrown Off Pier Into Ocean ates v. <u>Marler</u>	748
Aides At On Charge United Sta	and Jury Returns Indictment Against Institution For Mentally Retarded es Of Physically Abusing Clients ates v. Dise, Bilinski, Conrad, x, Peace, Snell, Wisniewski, Peace	748
OFFICE OF	LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS	749
APPENDIX:	FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE This page should be placed on permanent file, by Rule, in each United States Attorney's office library.	761
	Rules Governing Petitions for Executive Clemency	763
	Memorandum issued November 4, 1983, to the United States Attorneys from Mr. J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, entitled "Procedures for Handling Cases Referred by the Food and Drug	
	Administration."	765
	LIST OF UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS	767

-

.

ł.

.

#### COMMENDATIONS

Assistant United States Attorney TERREE A. BOWERS, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Ashley G. Williams, Special Agent in Charge, Secret Service, Department of Treasury, Los Angeles, California, for her successful prosecution of United States v. Ochoa, which involved the possession of counterfeit currency.

Assistant United States Attorney LOUIS DEMAS, Eastern District of California, has been commended by Mr. Wilbur W. Jennings, Regional Attorney, Department of Agriculture, San Francisco, California, for his outstanding assistance in <u>United States v. Nunez</u>, which involved the administration of national forest land.

Assistant United States Attorney ANITA H. DYMANT, Central District of California, has been commended by the Airline Pilots Association, Washington, D.C., for her successful prosecution in United States v. S.I.R. Air Freight, Inc., which involved mislabeling of hazardous materials carried on commercial airlines.

Assistant United States Attorney LAURIE L. LEVENSON, Central District of California, has been commended by Mr. Richard T. Bretzing, Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Department of Justice, Los Angeles, California, for her successful prosecution of <u>United States</u> v. <u>Wagner</u>, in which the defendant was found guilty of murder in a Federal penitentiary.

Assistant United States Attorney DAN A. POLSTER, Northern District of Ohio, has been commended by Mr. Joseph E. Griffin, Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Department of Justice, Cleveland, Ohio, for his outstanding performance and successful prosecution of the perjury case, <u>United States</u> v. Bergman.

Assistant United States Attorney MARY BETH UITTI, Eastern District of California, has been commended by Colonel Arthur E. Williams, Corps of Engineers, Department of the Army, Sacramento, California, for her outstanding presentation and successful defense in State of California v. Yuba Goldfields, Inc. and United States, which involved the State of California's claim to the bed of the Yuba River.

#### EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS William P. Tyson, Director

#### POINTS TO REMEMBER

#### ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT

1) An Assistant United States Attorney was detained by a security officer of a drug store for shoplifting. The Office of Professional Responsibility was satisfied, as was the local prosecutor, with the Assistant's explanation that he forgot to pay for the item. However, the Assistant was given an oral admonishment for not reporting the incident to the United States Attorney, who learned of it from the Federal Bureau of Investigation. A reprimand may have been imposed for the Assistant's failure to report the matter except that he had been acting on the advice of counsel and the time lapse was only three days.

2) A defense attorney requested the Department of Justice to remove an Assistant United States Attorney as the prosecutor in charge of a large investigation based upon numerous allegations of misconduct. While the Department determined that his conduct was not sufficiently egregious to warrant his removal from the investigation, they did find that there were certain areas where the Assistant did not exercise appropriate judgment, specifically, lengthy delays (2 years) were encountered in the payment of witness fees and grand jury witnesses were refused permission to confer with their attorneys after they had requested to do so. The United States Attorney was asked to discuss the matter with the Assistant to ensure that such tactics are not employed in the future.

3) A United States Attorney reported that an Assistant on his staff had discussed jury deliberations and had arranged personal dates with two jurors subsequent to their final deliberation in a criminal case. The contacts were initiated by the jurors. The defendant filed a motion for a new trial which was based on the Assistant's contact with the jurors, as well as other matters. It was determined that the Assistant's The motion was granted. conduct violated a well-known local District Court rule which prohibits an attorney from interviewing, examining or questioning any juror with respect to the deliberations or verdict of the jury except by leave of court. Although there was no indication that the Assistant violated the ABA Code of Professional Responsibility or Department Standards of Conduct, the United States Attorney and the Executive Office believed that the Assistant exhibited extremely poor judgment. The Assistant resigned before formal disciplinary action was taken.

#### ETHICAL QUESTIONS

1) An Assistant United States Attorney requested permission, pursuant to Department of Justice Standards of Conduct (28 C.F.R. §45.735-9), to serve as a part-time volunteer Pro-Tem in a local Small Claims court. Although the Assistant would not be compensated and would serve during evening sessions, it was decided that having a Federal prosecutor act as a judge in a state court proceeding would create the appearance of and potential for a conflict of interest. The request was denied.

2) A United States Attorney requested an opinion as to the propriety of his office handling an investigation of possible mail fraud violations by a county employee that involved contracts prepared and approved by the county attorney who subsequently was appointed as an Assistant United States Attorney in the United States Attorney's office conducting the investigation. The Assistant left the county's employ shortly after the contracts were executed and approximately three month's prior to the time period during which the alleged fraudulent acts took place. The Assistant was not apprised of the investigation by the United States Attorney's office and the United States Attorney screened the Assistant to ensure that he was kept completely apart from the investigation. It was not anticipated that the Assistant would ever become a witness or participate in any way in either the investigation, any grand jury proceeding or any resulting court proceeding. Therefore, it was determined that no conflict of interest existed with regard to the United States Attorney conducting the investigation.

3) An Assistant United States Attorney requested permission to use Department of Justice letterhead while rendering <u>pro bono</u> services. Although providing <u>pro bono</u> services conformed with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. §45.735-9, the use of Federal property in the rendering of <u>pro bono</u> services is not permitted. By encouraging and authorizing employees to engage in outside activities, the Department of Justice is not authorizing employees to render services as representatives of the Department of Justice, but rather to provide legal representation in their individual capacities.

Executive Order No. 11222, Sec. 204 prohibits an employee from using Federal property for other than officially approved activities. It is the mere use of the Government property which is prohibited by this order. Therefore, even reimbursement for materials such as letterhead paper would not remedy the improper use. See also, 28 C.F.R. §45.735-16. Furthermore, the use of

official Department of Justice stationary could appear to influence the outcome of the Assistant United States Attorney's probono activities in violation of 28 C.F.R. §45.735-9(c)(3)(f)(4), which prohibits an employee from engaging in any outside activity even if authorized by 28 C.F.R. §45.735-9, if the employee's position in the Department of Justice would influence or would appear to influence the outcome of the matter. Therefore, the Assistant was denied permission to use Department of Justice letterhead stationary.

(Executive Office)

### Rules Governing Petitions For Executive Clemency

On May 5, 1983, President Reagan approved a revision of the rules governing petitions for pardon and other forms of Executive clemency, the first revision since 1962. The regulations governing petitions for Executive clemency describe the procedures involved in petitioning the President for Executive clemency, and the responsibility of the Attorney General in investigating each applicant for clemency and advising the President as to the proper disposition of each application. The new rules simplify and update clemency procedures, authorize the Attorney General to delegate his responsibility in such matters, lengthen the eligibility waiting period for pardon applicants to a minimum of five years, with a minimum of seven required for more serious crimes, increase the categories of crimes requiring the longer eligibility waiting and broaden the discretionary authority to release period, clemency records in the public interest. A new section describes the nature and effect of the regulations.

For specific information regarding recommendations by the United States Attorney to the Attorney General, continue to refer to United States Attorneys' Manual 1-3.108.

A copy of the rules is included as an appendix to this issue of the United States Attorneys' Bulletin. The rules will be published in the next revision of the Code of Federal Regulations at 28 C.F.R. §1.1 et seq. In the interim, additional copies may be requested by calling the Office of the Pardon Attorney at (FTS) 492-5910.

(Executive Office)

#### Procedures For Handling Cases Referred By The Food And Drug Administration

On November 7, 1983, a memorandum was issued to all United States Attorneys from Mr. J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, regarding procedures for handling cases

referred to the Department of Justice by the Food and Drug This memorandum emphasizes that pursant to 28Administration. C.F.R. §45(j), responsibility for all civil and criminal litigation and grand jury proceedings that arise under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act is assigned to the Civil Division. The Food and Drug Administration will refer requests to file injunctions and civil penalty actions and to commence criminal and The Office of grand jury proceedings to the Civil Division. Consumer Litigation, which has responsibility for these matters, will decide whether the matter will be referred to the United States Attorney's office for handling or whether the Civil Division will retain the case. Following previous practice, the Office of Consumer Litigation will consult with the United States Attorney's office concerning the merits and conduct of the litigation.

A copy of this memorandum is included as an appendix to this issue of the United States Attorneys' Bulletin.

(Executive Office)

## 733 NO. 24

#### OFFICE OF THE SOLICITOR GENERAL Solicitor General Rex E. Lee

The Solicitor General has authorized the filing of a petition for writ of certiorari with the Supreme Court on or before Janurary 9, 1984, in United States v. Betty Lou Powell. The issue is whether a conviction based on a jury verdict finding the defendant guilty of using a telephone to facilitate a controlled substance offense, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §843(b), should be set aside because it was found to be inconsistent with the jury's acquittal of the defendant on the controlled substance charge.

The Soliciter General has filed a brief amicus curiae supporting petitioner with the Supreme Court in Bratton v. City of Detroit, No. 83-551. The issue is whether the City of Detroit unlawfully adopted a 50/50 racial quota for promotions from the rank of sergeant to the rank of lieutenant as a means of remedying past intentional discrimination against blacks by the police department. CIVIL DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Murray v. Buchanan, F.2d No. 81-1301(D.C. Cir. Oct. 28, 1983). D.J. # 145-11-292.

> D.C. CIRCUIT, SITTING EN BANC, DISMISSES TAX-PAYERS' CHALLENGE TO HOUSE AND SENATE CHAPLAINS FOR FAILURE TO RAISE A SUBSTANTIAL CONSTITUTIONAL QUESTION, IN LIGHT OF SUPREME COURT'S DECISION IN NEBRASKA CHAPLAIN CASE.

This case involved a challenge by Federal taxpayers (who are also atheists) to the payment of salaries and certain expenses for the chaplains of the Senate and the House of Representatives. Suit was brought against the Treasurer of the United States and other Federal executive officials as well as against certain Congressional officials of the Senate and House seeking declaratory and injunctive relief under the Establishment Clause of the First Amendment to prevent expenditures of Federal moneys for the chaplains. The district court dismissed the atheist taxpayers' complaint on the grounds that they lacked standing to challenge these payments to the Senate and House chaplains and that their claim presented a nonjusticiable political question.

A divided panel of the court of appeals reversed and remanded for further proceedings on the merits of the taxpayers' claims. The panel majority held that plaintiffs had standing as Federal taxpayers and that their claim did not present a nonjusticiable political question. By order of May 25, 1982, the court of appeals vacated the panel's decision and granted an en banc rehearing on the standing and political question issues.

On July 18, 1983, several months after oral argument, the <u>en</u> <u>banc</u> court directed the parties to show cause why the appeal should not be dismissed for failure to raise a substantial constitutional question. This <u>en banc</u> show cause order was prompted by the Supreme Court's decision in <u>Marsh</u> v. <u>Chambers</u>, No. 82-23 (July 5, 1983), upholding the constitutionality of the Nebraska Legislature's chaplaincy practice. In response to the <u>en banc</u> court's order, plaintiffs argued that the D.C. Circuit case is not controlled by the <u>Marsh</u> decision. The Government argued, to the contrary, that plaintiffs' claim on the merits is controlled by the <u>Marsh</u> decision and that the D.C. Circuit case should therefore be dismissed for want of a substantial constitutional question. On October 28, 1983, the <u>en</u> <u>banc</u> court, in a <u>per curiam</u> opinion, accepted the Government's argument and dismissed the appeal, vacated the district court judgment, and

CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

remanded for dismissal of the complaint for want of a substantial constitutional question.

Attorneys: Leonard Schaitman (Civil Division) FTS (633-3441)

> Michael Jay Singer (Civil Division) FTS (633-3159)

Jayvee Brand, Inc., et al. v. United States, F.2d No. 82-1167 (D.C. Cir. Nov. 15, 1983). D.J. # 157-16-6364.

#### D.C. CIRCUIT AFFIRMS DISMISSAL OF TRIS MANUFACTURERS' TORT CLAIMS AGAINST U.S. AND CPSC COMMISSIONERS.

This suit for damages was brought by manufacturers of childrens' sleepwear against the United States under the FTCA and against five former members of the Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) under the Fifth Amendment due process clause. Plaintiffs sought approximately \$40 million in damages for losses allegedly caused when the CPSC declared TRIS-treated fabric to be a hazardous substance, banned its sale in interstate commerce, and required manufacturers to buy back their garments. Plaintiffs complained that the CPSC failed to follow proper procedures in issuing these orders and that such orders might not have been issued if the Commission had complied with applicable regulations. The district court dismissed both the FTCA claim against the United States and the constitutional tort claims against the Commissioners in their individual capacities.

On appeal, the dismissal of these claims was affirmed. With respect to the claims against the Commissioners, individually, Judge Bork, writing for the court, held that plaintiffs were seeking to recover for actions taken by the Commissioners in their exercise of <u>quasi-legislative</u> <u>rule-making</u> authority. As to such actions, the court held, the Commissioners are entitled to absolute immunity. Additionally, the court held that it lacked jurisdiction over the manufacturers' FTCA claims against

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

the United States. In support of his opinion, Judge Bork set forth three alternative sovereign immunity grounds. First, he held that issuance of the ban constituted a discretionary decision and that the Commission's failure to follow mandated procedures should be characterized, for purposes of the FTCA, as an abuse of discretion. Applying the discretionary function exception to the FTCA, Judge Bork held that the action was expressly barred by sovereign immunity. Second, Judge Bork held that jurisdiction over these claims is lacking under 28 U.S.C. 1346(b) because they involve quasi-legislative acts of the type that private persons could not engage in and hence could not be liable for under local law. Finally, the court held that this type of action is impliedly exempt from coverage under the FTCA because Congress did not intend to waive sovereign immunity as to claims of administrative irregularity.

In his concurring opinion, Judge Lumbard, sitting by designation, expressed no disagreement with Judge Bork's view that the Commissioners were entitled to absolute immunity on the <u>Bivens-</u> type claims. As to the FTCA claims, Judge Lumbard joined Judge Bork in implying an exception to the FTCA for this type of claim based on the view that Congress never intended to expose the Government to tort liability for procedural infractions in the promulgation of administrative rules. Although Judge Edwards also concurred in the judgment, he did not state the point(s) where his views diverge from the opinion for the court.

> Attorneys: Anthony Steinmeyer (Civil Division) FTS (633-3388)

> > Katherine Gruenheck (Civil Division) FTS (633-4825)

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

Christian Broadcasting Network, Inc., et al. v. Copyright Royalty Tribunal, et al., F.2d No. 82-1312 (D.C. Cir. Oct. 25, 1983).

#### D.C. CIRCUIT AFFIRMS DIVISION OF CABLE TELEVISION COPYRIGHT FEES FOR 1979, WITH "IMPORTANT EXCEPTIONS."

The Copyright Royalty Tribunal is an independent entity in the legislative branch which we represent by request. The Tribunal's task is to set rates for the use of intellectual property utilized by the cable television, jukebox, and recording industries. Users pay the cable fees to the Copyright Office and the Tribunal must distribute the funds among competing claimants. The distribution orders are directly reviewable by petition in the circuit courts. In this case, the motion picture and program syndicators, the devotional (or religious) broadcasters, the Spanish language network, and the broadcasters petitioned for review of the 1979 fund determinations; the sports team interests, public radio and televisions, Multimedia Productions, and the owners of music copyrights intervened to support the Tribunal with respect to their awards.

The determinations of the Tribunal were largely upheld, but three areas were remanded to the Tribunal for further elaboration: (1) The "zero" awards to the devotional program owners were subjected to the greatest criticism by the court. The panel noted that there was a presumption that these claimants were entitled to at least a nominal award, and the Tribunal was directed to discuss specifically a series of evidentiary and policy arguments raised by these claimants. (2) The broadcasters asked for a portion of the fees awarded to the sports interests for their contribution to a sports broadcast. The Tribunal allowed the introduction of evidence on this point, but did not evaluate it. The agency relied on an earlier decision, where a "zero" award to the broadcasters on this issue was sustained, but on different grounds. The agency now must, on remand, evaluate the broadcasters' evidence. (3) Finally, the "zero" award to commercial radio would have to be explained in light of the funds awarded to music interests as a part of

VOL. 31

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

programming. The major parameters of the agency's allocations were sustained and all procedural objections were turned away.

Attorneys: William Kanter (Civil Division) FTS (633-5428)

> Bruce Forrest (Civil Division) FTS (633-3542)

Deborah Kant (Civil Division) FTS (633-3469)

Railroad Yardmasters of America v. <u>Harris</u>, F.2d No. 82-2468 (D.C. Cir. Nov. 10, 1983). D.J. # 145=135-64.

> D.C. CIRCUIT UPHOLDS DELEGATION ORDER OF THE NATIONAL MEDIATION BOARD AUTHORIZING THE SOLE REMAINING MEMBER TO EXERCISE THE POWERS OF THE BOARD WHILE THERE ARE TWO VACANCIES ON THE BOARD.

The NMB is authorized to have three members. The statute provides that vacancies shall not impair the powers of the remaining members, but it also provides that two members shall constitute a quorum. The statute further provides that the Board may assign any portion of its work to an individual member. When there was one vacancy on the Board, the two remaining members issued a delegation order providing that all powers of the Board were to be delegated to one member. One of the members then immediately resigned, and the remaining member conducted the Board's business pursuant to the delegation order from June 1, 1982, until a second member took office on October 12, 1982.

The losing union in a representational dispute challenged the Board's certification of its rival on the ground that the Board had no authority to act with only one member in office. The district court (Judge June Green) sustained the union's challenge, relying on the quorum provision of the statute and

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

holding that the delegation order was not valid when the Board had only one member. The court of appeals (Judges Edwards and McGowan, with Judge Wald dissenting) has just reversed Judge Green's decision. The court rejected our argument that the union could not challenge the competency of the NMB to act without having first raised the issue administratively with the Board, but ruled in our favor on the merits. The court held that the delegation order was within the authority granted by the statute. The court particularly emphasized that the delegation order was issued in furtherance of the statutory purpose of keeping the Board in operation so that it could continue to perform its duties while the vacancies remained. The court also held, as we had urged, that even if the district court was right on the merits it should have applied its order prospectively so as not to disturb other rulings of the NMB between June 1 and October 12, 1982 (Judge Wald concurred with the majority on this point).

> Attorneys: Anthony Steinmeyer (Civil Division) FTS (633-3388)

> > John Hoyle (Civil Divison) FTS (633-3547)

<u>Richard R. Bartlett</u> v. <u>Richard Schweiker</u>, F.2d No. 82-1723 (10th Cir. Oct. 21, 1983). D.J. # 137-49-190.

> TENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT PLAINTIFFS IN CLASS ACTION CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF THE NEW MEXICO SOCIAL SECURITY DIS-ABILITY DETERMINATION UNIT ARE NOT EN-TITLED TO A WAIVER OF THE EXHAUSTION REQUIREMENT OF 42 U.S.C. 405(q).

Plaintiffs -- a number of Social Security disability recipients whose benefits had been terminated -- brought a class action claiming that their benefits had been improperly terminated, because "there is no valid Social Security disability determination unit (DDU) in the state of New Mexico." They argued that the New Mexico DDU is invalid because it was

## NO .

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

not created by the New Mexico state legislature and has not filed a copy of its regulations in the state library, as required by state law. The district court dismissed the case, however, for failure to exhaust administrative remedies as required by 42 U.S.C. 405(g).

On appeal, we defended the district court's exhaustion decision largely on the ground that plaintiffs had not demonstrated an irreparible injury. The court of appeals agreed, stating that "in the district court there were no allegations as to such elements of irreparable harm and no such showing was made in [plaintiff's] response to the defendant's motion to dismiss and supporting affidavit." The court further noted that plaintiffs could not be considered representatives of a class, because "the complaint does not allege that the unnamed class members have presented claims to the Secretary and thus their claims cannot be reviewed." The court therefore did not reach our arguments that plaintiffs lacked standing to bring this claim because there was no causal connection between the alleged invalidity of the DDU and the termination of plaintiffs' benefits, and that plaintiffs' claim in any event was manifestly insubstantial.

> Attorneys: Willaim Kanter (Civil Division) FTS (633-1597)

> > John S. Koppel (Civil Division) FTS (633-5459)

<u>Jane Doe</u> v. <u>United States</u>, F.2d No. 82-5578 (11th Cir. Nov. 3, 1983). D.J. # 157-18-1067).

ELEVENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS POSTAL SERVICE IS NOT LIABLE FOR A CRIMINAL ACT COMMITTED IN A POST OFFICE LOBBY BY A NON-EMPLOYEE.

In this Tort Claims Act suit a postal patron brought an action to recover damages arising from a rape committed by a stranger who wandered into a post office lobby held open after regular business hours to permit access to postal lock boxes and stamp vending machines. No guards or postal employees were on duty at the time. The district court held the Government liable, finding that the Postal Service owed a duty of care to

#### CIVIL DIVISION Assistant Attorney General J. Paul McGrath

to its patrons which it had breached by not taking adequate security measures to prevent the crime from occurring. On appeal we contended that the action was barred by the discretionary function exception to the FTCA; that the Government could not be held liable under the local Florida law pertaining to owners of premises because there was no proof of any similar crime ever having been committed on the postal premises to make this crime forseeable; that crime statistics as to crime in the local area introduced by the plaintiff did not establish forseeability; and that we had been unfairly prejudiced by the trial court's exclusion of our proffered testimony by the chief of police to explain that despite those statistics, the post office itself was located in a relatively crime free area.

The Eleventh Circuit has reversed the district court and sustained our arguments on all the issues raised. The court held that the decisions of postal authorities as to postal operations are discretionary functions; that Florida law requires proof of foreseeability on the basis of prior similar acts committed on the premises, and that the district court abused its discretion in excluding the testimony of the chief of police to explain the statistics that the plaintiff had put in evidence.

> Attorneys: Eloise E. Davies (Civil Division) FTS (633-3425)

#### CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

United States v. Alabama, No. 83-C-1676-S (N.D. Ala. Sept. 26, 1983). D.J. # 169-2-54.

### DISTRICT COURT RULES IN HIGHER EDUCATION CASE.

District Judge U. W. Clemon made the following rulings in United States v. Alabama:

(1) denied motions by defendants Auburn University and the State Board of Education that he disqualify himself under 28 U.S.C. 455, finding that there was no factual basis for any of the three alleged grounds for disqualification since his limited appearance as counsel in Lee v. Macon had had nothing to do with desegregation of higher education; since his association with former Senator Donald Stewart, whose law firm represents Alabama A&M, was not of a nature to require disqualification; and since the motion to intervene on behalf of a class of black students in Alabama public schools, of which class the court's children would arguably have been a member, had been withdrawn;

(2) granted motions by Alabama A&M and Alabama State to be realigned as parties;

(3) accepted the withdrawal of the motion to intervene on behalf of the black student class;

(4) granted the motion of the University Legal Defense Fund and the National Alumni Normalite Association, two non-profit support groups for Alabama A&M, to intervene as plaintiff;

(5) denied a motion by the University of Montevallo to dismiss the complaint, or, in the alternative, for a more definite statement. Similar motions by other institutions had been filed, and denied, earlier.

On October 13, Judge Clemon heard arguments on pending motions in the case, including a motion to intervene by the plaintiffs in <u>Knight</u> v. <u>James</u>. <u>Knight</u>, which was filed in the Middle District of Alabama in 1981, is a suit by alumni of CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

traditionally black Alabama State University, seeking to have Alabama State absorb the Montgomery branches of two traditionally white schools. Our complaint, filed in the Northern District, omitted any reference to the Montgomery situation. The court, over our objection, expressed an intention to seek to consolidate Knight with our case. At a subsequent conference held later the same day, the court tentatively set February 21, 1984, as a trial date, expressing the view that the case should be tried on a stipulated record.

> Attorneys: Thomas M. Keeling (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4716) Nathaniel Douglas (Civil Rights Division)

FTS (633-4734)

Harvey L. Handley III (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4738)

Jay P. Heubert (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-3814)

LeVern Younger (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4741)

Jeanne Pettenati (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4749)

<u>United States</u> v. <u>Ramsey, et al.</u>, No. 83-195A (N.D. Ga. Oct. 20, 1983). D.J. # 144-19-1826.

#### FEDERAL JURY CONVICTS DEFENDANTS ON COUNTS RELATING TO ASSAULT ON BLACK MAN IN FEDERAL PARK.

A Federal jury convicted two defendants on various counts relating to an assault on a black man in a Federal park near Atlanta. Stephen Ramsey was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. 245(b)(1)(B) (violent interference with enjoyment of public facility), 18 U.S.C. 113 (assault on a Federal reservation), 18 U.S.C. 1503 (obstruction of justice), and 36 C.F.R. 2.11(b) (using a firearm in a manner to endanger another person). Ricky Ramsey was convicted of violating 18 U.S.C. 111 (resisting

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

Federal officers) and 18 U.S.C. 1001 (giving a false statement). On October 12, defendant Kelly Cato pled guilty to violating 18 U.S.C. 13 (carrying a concealed weapon) and testified for the Government. This matter involved Charles Merkerson, a black, who was in a Federal park near Atlanta when he was assaulted by the defendants. The defendants threatened Merkerson with a gun and knife and wounded Merkerson with a gun.

> Attorney: Craig Shaffer (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4153)

United States v. Smith, et al., No. IP 83-112-CR (S.D. Ind. Oct. 20, 1983). D.J. # 175-26S-54.

FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENT AGAINST DEFENDANTS CHARGED WITH INTERFERENCE WITH HOUSING RIGHTS.

A Federal grand jury returned a two count indictment charging defendants Joseph Smith and Duane McCurdy with violating 42 U.S.C. 3631 (interference with housing rights), and conspiracy. During the evening of September 14, 1982, the black victim, Sylvester Jones, and his girlfriend, who is white, awoke and saw flickering light outside their window. Jones opened the curtain slightly and saw three young men attempting to light a cross in his front yard. Local police identified two of the defendants but released them. The FBI interviewed the defendants and all three admitted their participation in the incident. The victim was the only black resident of Fortville, Indiana, at the time of the attempted cross burning. A separate two count information was filed on the same date charging a juvenile with participation in the same incident. Trial in that case is scheduled for December 12, 1983.

> Attorney: Susan King (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-2734)

#### CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

<u>United States</u> v. <u>Ebens and Nitz</u>, No. 83-CR-60629-DT (E.D. Mich. Nov. 2, 1983). D.J. # 144-37-1096.

#### FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENT IN CASE INVOLVING DEATH OF CHINESE-AMERICAN CLUBBED TO DEATH WITH BASEBALL BAT.

A Federal grand jury returned a two count indictment charging Ronald Ebens and his stepson, Michael Nitz, with violating 18 U.S.C. 241 (conspiracy) and 18 U.S.C. 2 and 245 (interference with right to patronize a place of public accommodation because of race, color, and national origin, resulting in death). Vincent Chin, the Chinese-American victim, was clubbed to death with a baseball bat on a street in Highland Park, Michigan. Victim Chin had earlier been involved with the defendants in an altercation in a bar which involved racial name calling. The defendants, two white men, pled guilty to state charges of manslaughter in Chin's death and were placed on three years probation.

> Attorney: Ross Connealy (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4074)

United States v. Grandison, et al., No. HM 83-00200 (D. Md. Nov. 3, 1983). D.J. # 144-35-939.

#### DEFENDANTS WHO WERE OFFERED MONEY TO GUN DOWN KEY WITNESSES IN FEDERAL NARCOTICS TRIAL CONVICTED.

Defendants Anthony Grandison, Vernon L. Evans, Jr., Rodney Kelly, and Janet P. Moore were convicted of a two count violation of 18 U.S.C. 241 (death resulting) and 18 U.S.C. 1512 (using physical force to cause Scott Piechowiez to be absent from official proceeding to which he had been summoned). The defendants were offered \$9,000 to gun down key witnesses in a Federal narcotics trial. Scott Piechowiez, who was scheduled to testify at the trial, and his sister-in-law, Susan Kennedy, died after being shot by a high-powered machine gun while at work at the Warren House Motor Hotel. This matter is being handled by the United States Attorney's Office.

> Attorney: Howard Feinstein (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-4147)

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

<u>United States</u> v. <u>Gwaltney</u>, No. 83-927 (C.D. Cal. Nov. 10, 1983). D.J. # 144-12C-1156.

> FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENT AGAINST HIGHWAY PATROLMAN AFTER TWO STATE HOMICIDE TRIALS RESULTED IN HUNG JURIES.

A Federal grand jury returned a one count indictment charging defendant George Gwaltney with violating 18 U.S.C. 242. The defendant, a California Highway Patrol officer, radioed that he found victim Robin Bishop's abandoned car and later found her body. Bishop, who had had recent sexual intercourse, had been shot through the back of the head. Defendant's service revolver with parts wrenched off was found two nights later in his locked truck. Two state homicide trials of the defendant resulted in hung juries. State prosecutors requested that we consider Federal prosecution.

> Attorney: Criselda Ortiz (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-3837)

United States v. Kozminski, et al., No. 83-CR-70025-AA (E.D. Mich. Nov. 17, 1983). D.J. # 50-37-20.

#### FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENT AGAINST DEFENDANTS CHARGED WITH INVOLUNTARY SERVITUDE.

A Federal grand jury returned a three count indictment charging defendants Ike Kozminski, Margarethe Kozminski, John Kozminski and Mike Jay Assam with violating 18 U.S.C. 241, 18 U.S.C. 1584 (involuntary servitude), and 18 U.S.C. 2. Victims Robert Arthur Fulmer and Louis Molitoris, two elderly retarded men, were compelled by threats, assaults and beatings to live in unsafe and unhealthy conditions and work without pay at the Kozminski's farm in Washtenaw County, Michigan. Ike and Margarethe Kozminski were arrested on October 26 after a complaint was filed in Federal court in Detroit. The complaint alleged that the Kozminskis, from 1972 to 1983, knowingly and wilfully held the two victims to involuntary servitude by compelling their labor and preventing them from leaving the employment and control of the defendants. A preliminary hearing was held November 10.

> Attorney: Susan King (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-2734)

CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION Assistant Attorney General Wm. Bradford Reynolds

United States v. Marler, No. 83-292 (D. Mass. Nov. 3, 1983). D.J. # 144-36-1013.

> FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENT AGAINST POLICE OFFICER IN CASE INVOLVING DEATH OF ALCOHOLIC THROWN OFF PIER INTO OCEAN.

A Federal grand jury returned a one count indictment charging a Lynn Police Department officer, Sgt. William T. Marler, with violating 18 U.S.C. 241 with death resulting. The victim, Lawrence Brown, a 29-year-old white alcoholic, died after allegedly being thrown off a pier into the ocean by the defendant. No trial date has been set yet.

> Attorney: Theodore Merritt (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-3858)

United States v. Dise, No. 83-00363; Bilinski, No. 83-00370; <u>Conrad</u>, No. 83-00367; Dise, No. 83-00364; Derix, No. 83-00369; <u>Peace</u>, No. 83-00365; <u>Snell</u>, No. 83-00366; <u>Wisniewski</u>, <u>No. 83-00368</u>; <u>Yost</u>, No. 83-00362 (E.D. Pa. Nov. 3, 1983). D.J. # 144-62-1085.

> FEDERAL GRAND JURY RETURNS INDICTMENTS AGAINST AIDES AT INSTITUTION FOR MENTALLY RETARDED ON CHARGES OF PHYSICALLY ABUSING CLIENTS.

A Federal grand jury indicted nine present or former aides at Pennhurst Center, a Pennsylvania institution for the severely mentally retarded, on charges of physically abusing clients at the center. The nine indictments charged mental retardation aides Debbie A. Bilinski, Marsha L. Conrad, Gregory A. Derix, Hastings J. Dise, Steven G. Dise, Kevin Peace, Cecil L. Snell, Jr., Margaret C. Wisniewski, and Harold Yost with beating, slapping, or punching patients in a series of incidents at the center in Spring City, Pennsylvania, during 1981 and 1982, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 242. This matter is being handled by the United States Attorney's office.

> Attorney: Theodore Merritt (Civil Rights Division) FTS (633-3858)

VOL. 31

#### OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS Assistant Attorney General Robert A. McConnell

SELECTED CONGRESSIONAL AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES

NOVEMBER 16, 1983 - NOVEMBER 29, 1983

#### HIGHLIGHTS

President's Comprehensive Crime Control Act (S. 1762). We have done everything possible for one Department in an effort to get this Presidential proposal to the Senate floor. The lack of Senate action is most unfortunate -- the Administration and the Senate had everything to gain and nothing to loose by passing the core bill before recess. The Administration has made incredible progress against crime; the administrative changes instituted are having a great impact. Speeches by Departmental officials on what we already have done bring resounding support. Had the Senate acted, the President's State of the Union could have been used in a magnificently dramatic way to move the legislation The subject is a winner, and legislative toward enactment. movement is so very important. However, other priorities -that could not have the same level of public support -- won out, it is really a shame. Efforts are continuing to secure Congressional action on the President's crime bill.

Drug Tsar. As we had anticipated, the conferees on the supplemental appropriations bill deleted the drug commission -drug tsar amendment added to the bill on the Senate floor. Congressional proponents of the drug tsar concept worked out a compromise version of their different drug tsar proposals and made a determined last minute effort to have the compromise language accepted by the conferees.

DOJ Appropriations. The conference report on the Department's appropriations bill, H.R. 3222, was approved by the Senate on November 15. The Senate rejected a move by Senator Melcher to disapprove the conferees' decision to adopt the Senate earmarking of \$450,000 for private legal fees in the Aamodt water adjudication suit.

The House approved the conference report on November 16, thus clearing the measure for the President. You will recall that the House had previously voted down the conferees' decision to include the Senate provision for a \$11.9 million appropriation for the Civil Rights Commission. The appropriation for the Civil Rights Commission was accepted by the House on the second

try because they believed that the controversy surrounding the Civil Rights Commission <u>authorization</u> had been resolved in the interim.

(H.R. 3222 was signed into law by President Reagan as P.L. 98-166 on November 28th.)

DOJ Authorization. The Department's FY 1984 authorization bill did not make it to the House floor before the Congressional session ended. While a similar measure has already passed in the Senate, we lost the race against the clock in the House. At the last minute an attempt to bring the measure up in the House failed when unanimous consent could not be obtained. It is problematic whether it will be pursued in the next session. Authorities in FY 80 Act are still in effect by provisions in FY 84 DOJ appropriations signed into P.L. 98-166 on November 28 by President Reagan.

H.R. 3932 - Amendments to the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act. The Department has conveyed its opposition to H.R. 3932, which would amend the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act. This Act provides that the District of Columbia City Council may enact substantive laws (with one exception concerning the court system) subject to a legislative veto of the Congress. H.R. 3932 responds to the Supreme Court's decision in INS v. Chadha, which declared the legislative veto device unconstitu-tional and would amend the Act so as to permit the D. C. City Council to enact laws, subject to an override by passage and enactment of a joint resolution. The Department believes that H.R. 3932 should be amended so as to provide that enactment by D. C. Council of laws concerning Titles 22, 23 and 24, relating to criminal law, criminal procedure and prisoners, respectively, of the D. C. Code will only take effect upon enactment of a joint resolution approving such.

Moving Expenses. The recently enacted continuing resolution to fund agencies without a regular appropriations bill, H. J. Res. 413, includes a provision sponsored by Senators Warner and Trible which significantly improves the relocation allowances for Government employees who are transferred. The provision is drafted as a series of amendments to Title 5 of the United States Code and thus, will not expire when the appropriations provisions of H. J. The Warner/Trible language is similar to a Res. 413 expire. legislative proposal for which the Department has unsuccessfully sought OMB clearance over the past several years, except the Warner/Trible provision applies to all Government employees. We had sought clearance of this legislation because the reimbursements which the Federal Government makes to its civilian employees for expenses incurred in connection with an official transfer are

**VOL.** 31

often inadequate. It is not unusual for such transferred employees to incur in excess of \$10,000 in unreimbursed expenses. We had not acted to support this effort but do not know what unauthorized activities may have taken place.

National Security Information. On October 14, Deputy Assistant Attorney General Richard Willard testified before the House Government Operations Subcommittee on Legislation and National Security concerning the President's National Security Decision Directive 84 (NSDD 84) on safegarding national security information.

The testimony described the background and purpose of NSDD In addition, the statement set forth the Administration's 84. views concerning polygraph examinations of Federal employees. The statement indicated that polygraph examinations can be properly and lawfully given to Federal employees or applicants in the following situations: First, as a condition of employment with or assignment to CIA and NSA, and for positions in other agencies that entail equally sensitive responsibilities directly affecting national security; second, as a condition of access to highly sensitive categories of classified information which are likely to be of extraordinary interest to hostile intelligence services; third, to investigate serious criminal cases, where the employee voluntarily consents to the examination after an opportunity to consult with counsel; and fourth, to investigate serious administrative misconduct cases under limited circumstances.

Apart from Mr. Willard's testimony and that of Deputy Undersecretary of Defense Richard Stilwell, the hearing was structured to receive testimony that was overwhelmingly opposed to NSDD 84. The fifteen witnesses in opposition to the Administration's position included CBS news correspondent Bob Schieffer; former Deputy Undersecretary of State George Ball; Ralph Davidson, Chairman of the Board of Time, Inc., and representatives of the General Accounting Office and the Office of Technology Assessment.

During Senate floor consideration of the Department of State FY 1984 authorization bill, S. 1342, a Mathias amendment was adopted by a vote of 56 to 34 which would suspend the implementation of the President's National Security Decision Directive 84 until April 15, 1984, with regard to implementation of expanded use of pre-publication review agreements.

Conferees' met on the Department of State authorization bill, redesignated as H.R. 2915, and agreed to retain the provision added by Senator Mathias on the Senate floor. The measure was signed into law as P.L. 98-164 on November 22, 1983. The Administration opposed passage of the Mathias amendment arguing that the new secrecy agreements constitute a reasonable means to reduce unauthorized disclosures of classified information.

NO. 24

TVA Litigating Authority. The conference committee for the FY 1984 Supplemental Appropriations bill, H.R. 3959, agreed to retain a provision in the House version of the bill prohibiting the Department from representing the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) in litigation. This provision is similar to a section in the Department's appropriation's bill, H.R. 3222, which has already been signed by the President into law on November 28 (P.L. 98-166). However, the TVA language in H.R. 3959, is worse than the P.L. 98-166 provision because the former is "permanent," i.e.: not limited to FY 1984.

H.R. 3959 was signed into law as P.L. 98-181 on November 30, 1983. Senator Laxalt opposed the TVA provision in H.R. 3959. Unfortunately, he was not a conferee on that bill.

<u>Child Pornography</u>. This provision of the President's Comprehensive Crime Control Act was approved as a separate bill (S. 1469) this summer by the Senate. During October the House approved a similar child porn bill, H.R. 3635, by a vote of 400-1. Both bills are very similar to our proposal and would facilitate Federal prosecution of child pornography cases. Because of the need to iron out differences between the House and Senate bills, it will be early next year before a bill can be cleared and presented to the President. It appears, however, that the differences can be worked out quickly and that a good bill can be enacted promptly, perhaps as early as January.

Advertising of Legal Gambling. On November 15, Deputy Assistant Attorney General John C. Keeney testified before Senator Laxalt's Criminal Law Subcommittee with respect to the Senator's bill, S. 1876, to modify current Federal laws prohibiting advertising of gambling operations. Because the Supreme Court's decision in <u>Bigelow v. Virginia</u> casts grave doubt upon the constitutionality of existing anti-advertising restrictions, the Department does not object to the Laxalt bill which merely conforms the law to judicial interpretations of the First Amendment. Senator Laxalt appeared pleased that we were not opposing his bill and indicated his interest to process it through the Senate early next year.

<u>Credit Card Fraud.</u> On November 16, the House approved H.R. 3622 (by a vote of 422 to 1) to strengthen Federal laws governing credit card crime. This bill would revise provisions of Title 15 of the United States Code; the House and Senate Judiciary Committees are processing companion bills to make similar improvements in provisions of Title 18 relating to credit card fraud. Last week, Senate Judiciary reported Chairman Thurmond's credit card bill, S. 1870. It is now clear that there is strong Congressional support for credit card crime legislation, which the Department favors, with the result that reforms will likely be approved and submitted to the President early next year. <u>Civil Rights Enforcement</u>. The Senate Committee on Labor and Human Resources, Subcommittee on the Handicapped held a hearing on November 17 on the DOJ's enforcement of the rights of the handicapped and those of institutionalized persons. Testifying for the Department, Assistant Attorney General Reynolds, Civil Rights Division emphatically stated that he and this Administration have vigorously protected and advance the rights of institutionalized mentally retarded citizens and the rights of handicapped citizens generally. Chairman Weicker blasted what he characterized as delays in the enforcement of these rights. Senator Weicker offered to tour any institution with Assistant Attorney General Reynolds in order to get a first hand look at the problem.

S. 1566 - Program Fraud Civil Penalties Act. On November 15, J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, appeared before the Subcommittee on Permanent Investigations of the Senate Committee on Government Affairs to discuss S. 1566, the Program Fraud Civil Penalties Act. S. 1566 would provide for the Administrative imposition of civil penalties for false claims and statements made to the United States, or to those receiving property or having contractual, relations with the United States. Subject to several recommendations for amendments, the Department supports S. 1566.

S. 501 - Elimination of Gender-Based Distinctions. The Senate Judiciary Committee reported out S. 501, a bill to amend the laws of the United States to eliminate gender-based distinctions, this morning. This bill will not amend such controversial Federal code sections as the selective service and combat provisions, but was designed to eliminate sex-biased terminology in designated code provisions. The bill, as amended in an earlier subcommittee mark-up, will amend or repeal approximately one hundred and fifty code sections which, on their face, substantially discriminate on the basis of sex.

The views of the Administration were cleared by OMB and delivered to the Committee immediately prior to its meeting. We are advised that the Administration's suggestions will be offered by Senator Dole as technical amendments on the Senate floor.

<u>Toxic Torts</u>. On November 8, J. Paul McGrath, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, appeared before the Subcommittee on Investigations and Oversight of the House Public Works Committee to discuss issues surrounding proposals of toxic waste victim compensation programs. Mr. McGrath reviewed the Administration's ongoing efforts in reviewing the present litigation and claims procedure in toxic torts, whether sensible alternative schemes can be developed, and if they can be developed, whether they can be financed.

H.R. 2677 - Oil Pipeline Regulatory Reform Act of 1983. On November 9, William F. Baxter, Assistant Attorney General, Antitrust Division, appeared before the Subcommittee on Surface Transportation of the House Committee on Public Works to discuss the deregulation of the oil pipeline industry. Mr. Baxter stated that much of the oil pipeline industry could be deregulated, although not as quickly as some would hope. Additionally, it would be necessary to preserve regulation of pipelines when it is necessary to curb the exercise of substantial market power.

Anti-Terrorism Legislative Package. In May, the Department of Justice submitted a five-part anti-terrorism legislative package to OMB for clearance. OMB has now advised that this package will go forward covered by a Presidential message to the Congress on terrorism. The target date for the Presidential message and submission of the legislative package is the first week of January. With this "push", Department attorneys have been meeting with representatives of the State Department and the CIA and all previous substantive differences have now apparently been resolved. In the meantime, work is proceeding on the drafting of a Presidential message. Barring some unforeseen difficulty, therefore, it appears that a message and legislative package will be presented to the President in time for transmission early in January.

<u>RCRA Reauthorization</u>. The Department successfully lobbied the Administration supported enactment of two Judiciary Committee amendments to H.R. 2867. In the first, the legislation was amended to delete therefrom certain provisions that would permit the EPA to litigate in Federal Court without the supervision of the Attorney General. In the second, a provision permitting EPA investigators to carry firearms and make arrests was replaced by an authorization for the Attorney General to deputize certain EPA employees upon a showing of need.

Immigration. The Senate has twice passed immigration legislation, only to watch it bog down in the House. Speaker Thomas P. (Tip) O'Neill has reversed his earlier position and agreed to let House members vote on the measure (H.R. 1510) early next year.

The legislation is necessary to curb the increase in illegal aliens seeking jobs here. The most controversial provision would set up a system of fines and criminal penalties against employers who knowingly hire illegal aliens.

<u>Trademark Counterfeiting</u>. On Thursday, November 3, Associate Deputy Attorney General Timothy Finn testified before the House Subcommittee on Crime in support of legislation to establish criminal sanctions for counterfeiting of Federal registered trademarks. Chairman Rodino reportedly supports such legislation as does Chairman Thurmond. Prospects appear highly favorable, therefore, for enactment of trademark counterfeiting legislation next year.

755 NO. 24

Navajo Indians. On November 2, the Senate Select Committee on Indian Affairs and the Subcommittee on Administrative Law and Governmental Relations of the House Committee on the Judiciary, held separate hearings on legislation which would confer jurisdiction on the United States Claims Court to hear claims of the Navajo Tribe of Indians. Anthony Liotta, Deputy Assistant Attorney General, Land and Natural Resources Division, represented the Department at both hearings.

<u>Panama Canal</u>. On November 3, Wayne Vance, Deputy Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division appeared before the Subcommittee on Panama Canal and the Outer Continental Shelf of the House Committee on Merchant Marine and Fisheries to discuss H.R. 3953, a bill to amend the Panama Canal Act of 1979. The Department strongly opposes H.R. 3953's proposal to further waive sovereign immunity so as to allow shippers to sue the Panama Canal Commission for accidents outside of the Canal locks.

Joint Research and Development. On November 3, William F. Baxter, Assistant Attorney General, Antitrust Division, appeared before the Joint Economic Committee to discuss the National Productivity and Innovation Act, which was submitted by the President to Congress in September. S. 1841 would amend the antitrust and intellectual property laws so as to markedly improve the ability of the private sector to develop and market new technology. Mr. Baxter stressed the need for reform to remove antitrust impediments to joint R&D, the greater need for reform to remove impediments to the licensing of technology; and the importance of assuming that the reforms implemented by Congress preserve procompetitive flexibility in the design and carrying out of joint R&D.

Inspector General - H.R. 3625. On October 26, D. Lowell Jensen, Associate Attorney General, appeared before the Subcommittee on Legislation and National Security of the House Committee on Government Operations to discuss H.R. 3625, the Inspector General Act Amendments of 1983. Mr. Jensen conveyed the Department's serious objections to the blanket extension of the Inspector General Act of 1978 to the Department. The Department of the Treasury voiced similar objections. The Department has strong reservations over such an amendment in that it would undermine the discretionary role of the Attorney General. H.R. 3625 would extend all the provisions of the 1978 Act to both Treasury and Justice.

<u>S. 1678 - Emergency Preparedness Act Amendments of 1983</u>. The Department has serious reservations over broad provisions in S. 1678 which would authorize the waiver of the conflict-ofinterest and antitrust laws. These concerns were conveyed to the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources on October 20, 1983 by Assistant Secretary William Vaughn of the Department of Energy.

756 VOL. 31

> U.S. Marshals Service and Witness Security Reform Act of 1983 (H.R. 3086). This pending legislation was marked up by the House Courts, Civil Liberties, and Administration of Justice Subcommittee on Thursday, October 20. An amendment in the nature of a substitute was adopted by voice vote. It was reported out of Subcommittee with three minor amendments. Everything considered, H.R. 3086 as reported by the Subcommittee is a better bill than we had expected. The full House Judiciary Committee will probably take up this legislation next session.

<u>Criminal Justice Act Revision</u>. On October 20, the House Judiciary Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of Justice conducted a mark up of H.R. 3233, the proposed Criminal Justice Act Revision of 1983. In response to Department concerns the Subcommittee deleted provisions which required court appointed counsel for financially - elgibile grand jury witnesses who "could be subjected to any criminal prosecution or face loss of liberty." The Subcommittee also accepted our proposal to lower the hourly attorneys fee ceilings in the Act to put them within the limits of the Equal Access to Justice Act.

Dole Identification Legislation. Representatives of the FBI and INS testified before Dole's Subcommittee of the Senate Judiciary. Our witnesses did not comment on the highly controversial policy issues involved in the Dole bill, S. 1706. Rather, they described our identification systems and the problems encountered by law enforcement officials in making positive identifications of persons arrested.

<u>Computer Crime</u>. Because of growing public concern over computer-related crime and unauthorized access to confidential computer data bases, the Department is conducting a comprehensive review of the issue with a view toward developing, for consideration within the Administration, a comprehensive computer crime legislative proposal. On October 17, representatives of the FBI testified before the House Science and Technology Committee regarding the types of computer-related offenses being investigated by Federal law enforcement agencies.

Florida Hearings. The House Select Committee on Narcotics and Drug Abuse and the House Judiciary Committee, Subcommittee on Crime held separate hearings in Florida during the week of October 10. The focus of the Select Committee hearings on October 12 and 13 in West Palm Beach was drug trafficking and abuse in South Florida. Witnesses included United States Attorney Stanley Marcus from Miami and representatives from the State Department, Coast Guard, Customs, DEA and FBI. According to reports, the Committee was more interested in problems than accomplishments and bore down on coordination deficiencies among Federal agencies, the need for a drug tsar, the lack of cooperation from foreign countries on extradition of convicted drug smugglers and the failure of the Administration to seek more funds for the antidrug effort. The House Subcommittee on Crime focused on forfeiture of assets in drug cases in its hearing in Fort Lauderdale on October 14. DOJ witnesses included representatives from DEA, United States Marshals, INS, as well as United States Attorney Marcus who took the occasion to emphasize the need for the Administration's crime bill, particularly the provisions relating to forfeiture. He also pointed out the advantages of the Administration's forfeiture provisions over those in the bill of Congressman Hughes, Chairman of the Subcommittee.

Refugee Consultation. On September 26, the Subcommittee on Immigration and Refugee Policy of the Senate Judiciary Committee held a hearing to review the Administration's proposal for refugee admissions for Fiscal Year 1984. The Attorney General and Alan Nelson, Commissioner of the Immigration and Naturalization Service, represented the Department of Justice.

<u>Bankruptcy</u>. Although we believe that the House should act as soon as possible to correct the current bankruptcy crisis, the Speaker does not appear interested in early action. He advised the Attorney General that the legislation (H.R. 3) would not be brought to the floor until after January.

While a bankruptcy bill (S. 1013) has been approved in the Senate, it appears House Democratic strategy will be to approve the legislation in the "eleventh hour" in March.

Although the Senate has approved a bankruptcy bill (S. 1013) which would create 229 bankruptcy judges for 14-year terms, questions about its constitutionality are being raised because the Supreme Court declared the bankruptcy court system unconstitutional because the judges did not have life tenures and guarantees against reductions in salaries as provided by Article III of the Constitution. The House bill (H.R. 3) would give bankruptcy judges lifetime appointments.

Currently, the bankruptcy courts are being operated under an interim rule proposed by the Judiciary Conference, the policy arm of the Federal court system, which expires March 31. If legislation is not passed by that date over 812,000 pending bankruptcy cases will inundate the Federal district courts.

<u>S. 461 - Reauthorization of the Office of Government Ethics</u>. The House and Senate have passed different versions of S. 461, a bill to reauthorize the Office of Government Ethics (OGE). The original Senate version contained a provision, strongly opposed by the Department, which would have limited the President's right to remove the Director of OGE. On September 28, the Senate passed another version of S. 461. This latest version does not restrict the right of the President to remove the Director of OGE but imposes upon the President the obligation to convey his reasons for the removal to the Congress. This latest version of S. 461 awaits House action.

<u>Federal Courts Improvements Act</u>. On September 28, the Subcommittee on Courts, Civil Liberties and the Administration of Justice of the House Judiciary Committee held a hearing on amendments to H.R. 3824, the Federal Courts Improvement Act. Stuart Schiffer, Deputy Assistant Attorney General, Civil Division, represented the Department of Justice.

#### NOMINATIONS

Stanley Harris, of the District of Columbia, to be U. S. District Judge.

Thomas Hull, of Tennessee, to be U. S. District Judge. Maryanne Barry, of New Jersey, to be U. S. District Judge. C. Roger Vinson, of Florida, to be U. S. District Judge. Martin Feldman, of Louisiana, to be U. S. District Judge. Moody Tidwell III, to be Judge -- U. S. Claims Court.

Pasco Bowman II, to be U. S. Circuit Judge for the Eighth Circuit.

Stephen Limbaugh, of Missouri, to be U. S. District Judge. Peter Dorsey, of Connecticut, to be U. S. District Judge. Pamela Rymer, of California, to be U. S. District Judge. John Vukasin, of California, to be U. S. District Judge. A. Joe Fish, of Texas, to be U. S. District Judge.

Shirley Kram, of New York, to be U. S. District Judge. Gregory Carman, to be Judge, U. S. Court of International Trade.

Bobby Baldock, of New Mexico, to be U. S. District Judge. William Barbour, of Mississippi, to be U. S. District Judge.

Joel Flaum, to be U. S. Circuit Judge for the Seventh Circuit.

Julia Gibbons, of Tennessee, to be U. S. District Judge. Ricardo Hinojosa, of Texas, to be U. S. District Judge. H. Ted Milburn, of Tennessee, to be U. S. District Judge. Leonard Wexler, of New York, to be U. S. District Judge. Francis M. (Bud) Mullen, Jr., to be Administrator, DEA.

Kenneth W. Starr, to be U. S. Circuit Court Judge for the District of Columbia Circuit.

John F. Keenan, to be U. S. District Court Judge for the Southern District of New York.

Stephen S. Trott, to be Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, DOJ.

F. Henry Habicht II, to be Assistant Attorney General, Land and Natural Resources Division, DOJ.

Joseph E. di Genova, to be United States Attorney for the District of Columbia.

#### FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE

#### Rule 615. Exclusion of Witnesses.

On appeal from a conviction of uttering an altered Government check, Defendant contends that the district court, in denying her motion to have the witnesses sequestered and allowing rebuttal testimony from witnesses who were in the courtroom during testimony of other witnesses, violated Rule 615 which requires exclusion of witnesses from the courtroom upon Defendant's request. The Government argues that Rule 615 is not applicable to rebuttal witnesses who have already testified during the case-in-chief since the jury has the opportunity to weigh the credibility of the rebuttal testimony in light of testimony previously given.

The court of appeals rejected the Government's assertions stating that the purpose of the Rule is to prevent witnesses from "tailoring" their testimony to that of earlier witnesses and to aid in detecting testimony that is less than candid, and these concerns are just as valid for rebuttal witnesses as they are for primary ones. Rule 615 states that the court "shall" exclude witnesses at the request of a party, making it a matter of right - one that is no longer committed to a court's discretion. Noting the various approaches adopted by other circuits to deal with Rule 615 violations, the court held as the appropriate remedy the approach which presumes prejudice to the defendant and requires reversal unless it is manifestly clear from the record that the error was harmless or unless the prosecution proves harmless error by a preponderance of the evidence. The court could not conclude whether the error was harmless based on the record and remanded the case to the district court for this determination.

(Remanded.)

ŧ.

United States v. Henrietta Faye Eli, 718 F.2d 291 (9th Cir. October 7, 1983).

VOL. 31 **DECEMBER** 9, 1983 **RULES GOVERNING PETITIONS FOR EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY** 

## United States Department of Justice

WASHINGTON, D.C.

763

#### **PART 1-EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY**

Sec.

- 1.1 Submission of petition; form to be used; contents of petition.
- 1.2 Eligibility for filing petition for pardon.
- 1.3 Eligibility for filing petition for commutation of sentence.
- 1.4 Offenses against the laws of possessions or territories of the United States.
- 1.5 Disclosure of files.
- Consideration of petitions; recom-1.6 mendations to the President.
  - Notification of grant of clemen-
- 1.8 Notification of denial of clemency.
- 1.9 Delegation of authority.
- 1.10 Advisory nature of regulations.

Authority: U.S. Const., Art. II, Sec. 2, and authority of the President as Chief Executive.

§ 1.1 Submission of petition; form to be used; contents of petition.

Persons seeking Executive clemency by pardon, reprieve, commutation of sentence or remission of fine shall execute formal petitions therefor. The petitions shall be addressed to the President of the United States and shall be submitted to the Pardon Attorney, Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. 20530, except for petitions relating to military offenses. Petitions and other required forms may be obtained from the Pardon Attorney. Petition forms for commutation of sentence also may be btained from the wardens of Federal nal institutions. A petitioner applying for Executive clemency with respect to military offenses should submit his petition directly to the Secretary of the military department which had original jurisdiction over the court-martial trial and conviction of the petitioner. In such instance, a form furnished by the Pardon Attorney may be used but should be modified to meet the needs of the particular case. Each petition for Executive clemency should include the information required in the form prescribed by the Attorney General.

#### § 1.2 Eligibility for filing petition for pardon.

No petition for pardon should be filed until the expiration of a waiting period of at least five years subsequent to the date of the release of the petitioner from confinement or, in case no prison sentence was imposed, until the expiration of a period of at least five years subsequent to the date of the conviction of the petitioner. In some cases, such as those involving violent crimes, violation of narcotics laws, gun control laws, income tax laws, perjury, violation of public trust involving personal dishonesty, fraud involving substantial sums of money, violations involving organized crime, or other crimes of a serious nature, no petition should be filed until the expiration of a waiting period of seven years. The waiting period may be waived in cases of aliens seeking a pardon to avert deportation. Generally, no petition should be submitted by a person who is on probation or parole.

#### § 1.3 Eligibility for filing petition for commutation of sentence.

A petition for commutation of sentence, including remission of fine, should be filed only if no other form of relief is available, such as from a court or the United States Parole Commission, or if unusual circumstances exist, such as critical illness, severity of sentence, ineligibility for parole, or meritorious service rendered by the petitioner.

#### § 1.4 Offenses against the laws of possessions or territories of the United States.

Petitions for Executive clemency shall relate only to violations of laws of the United States. Petitions relating to violations of laws of the possessions of the United States or territories subject to the jurisdiction thereof should be sub-

mitted to the appropriate official or agency of the possession or territory concerned.

#### § 1.5 Disclosure of files.

Petitions, reports, memoranda and communications submitted or furnished in connection with the consideration of a petition for Executive clemency generally shall be available only to the officials concerned with the consideration of the petition. However, they may be made available for inspection, in whole or in part, when in the judgment of the Attorney General their disclosure is required by law or the ends of justice.

#### § 1.6 Consideration of petitions; recommendations to the President.

(a) Upon receipt of a petition for Executive clemency the Attorney General shall cause such investigation to be made of the matter as he may deem necessary and appropriate, using the services of, or obtaining reports from, appropriate officials and agencies of the Government, including the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

(b) The Attorney General shall review each petition and all pertinent information developed by the investigation and shall determine whether the request " for clemency is of sufficient merit to warrant favorable action by the President. He shall report in writing his recommendation to the President, stating whether in his judgment the President should grant or deny the petition.

#### § 1.7 Notification of grant of clemen-CV.

When a petition for pardon is granted, the petitioner or his attorney shall be notified of such action and the warrant of pardon shall be mailed to the petitioner. When commutation of sentence is granted, the petitioner shall be notified of such action and the warrant of commutation shall be sent to the petitioner through the officer in charge of his place of confinement, or directly to the petitioner if he is on parole.

#### § 1.8 Notification of denial of clemency.

(a) Whenever the President notifies the Attorney General that he is denying a request for clemency, the Attorney General shall so advise the petitioner and close the case.

(b) Whenever the Attorney General recommends that the President deny a request for clemency and the President does not disapprove or take other action with respect to that adverse recommendation within 30 days after the date of its submission to him, it shall be presumed that the President concurs in that adverse recommendation of the Attorney General, and the Attorney General shall so advise the petitioner and close the case.

#### § 1.9 Delegation of authority.

The Attorney General may delegate to any officer of the Department of Justice any of his duties or responsibilities under §§ 1.1 through 1.8.

#### § 1.10 Advisory nature of regulations.

The regulations contained in this part are advisory only and for the internal guidance of Department of Justice personnel. They create no enforceable rights in persons applying for Executive clemency, nor do they restrict the authority granted to the President under Article II, Section 2 of the Constitution.

William French Smith Attorney General

Dated: April 27, 1983

#### Approved:

**Ronald Reagan** President

Dated: May 5, 1983

#### U.S. Department of Justice

**Civil Division** 

VOL. 31

DECEMBER 9, 1983

765 NO. 24

Office of the Assistant Attorney General

MEMORANDUM

Washington, D.C. 20530

## 4 NOV 1983

United States Attorneys **TO**: FROM: J. Paul M Assistant Atto /Geheral SUBJECT: Procedures/Yor Handling Cases Referred by the Food and Drug Administration

The purpose of this memorandum is to outline the procedures to be followed in handling litigation referred to the Department of Justice by the Food and Drug Administration [FDA].

Pursuant to 28 C.F.R. § 0.45(j), responsibility for all civil and criminal litigation and grand jury proceedings arising under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act is assigned to the Civil Division. The matters included in this assignment include civil seizure and forfeiture cases, civil penalty cases, injunction cases, misdemeanor and felony investigations and prosecutions, as well as defense of program-related actions against FDA or its officers and employees. Within the Civil Division, responsibility for these matters is assigned to the Office of Consumer Litigation.

Consistent with general Civil Division policy, FDA will refer requests to file injunction and civil penalty actions and

١

#### DECEMBER 9, 1983

requests to institute criminal and grand jury proceedings\*/ to the Division.

After referral to the Division, a decision will be made whether the matter will be referred to the United States Attorney for handling, whether the Division will retain the case, or whether the case should be jointly handled by the United States Attorney and Division personnel.

As in the past, the United States Attorney's office will be directly involved in each instance in the decision whether to institute litigation. As has been the previous practice, a staff attorney from the Office of Consumer Litigation will be assigned to each case and will consult closely with the United States Attorney's office concerning the merits and conduct of the litigation. In criminal cases, Consumer Litigation attorneys will continue to take an active role in most matters, and letters of authorization will be issued for their participation in grand jury proceedings.

The Office of Consumer Litigation welcomes the attention of the United States Attorney's offices to these important cases. Based on our experience, I believe that with mutual cooperation we can look forward to an effective, harmonious relationship in the conduct of this litigation.

\*/ Because civil seizure and forfeiture actions often involve  $\overline{a}$  risk of harm to the public if the defendant articles are not promptly removed from the stream of commerce, FDA is authorized to refer such matters directly to the appropriate United States Attorney, while concurrently sending a copy of the referral to the Office of Consumer Litigation. The United States Attorneys are authorized to file such actions without prior consultation with the Office of Consumer Litigation. Notwithstanding this authorization, the Office of Consumer Litigation is prepared to offer any assistance and guidance the United States Attorney may request, and the Office of Consumer Litigation should be kept abreast of all developments in such cases. In selected cases having multi-district implications or other significant issues, the Office of Consumer Litigation may, after filing, assume primary responsibility for a case or recommend joint handling of the matter.

-**4** - **1** 

## DECEMBER 9, 1983

767 NO. 24

•

## U.S. ATTORNEYS' LIST

DISTRICT	
	U.S. ATTORNEY
Alabama, N	Frank W. Donaldson
Alabama, M	John C. Bell
Alabama, S	J. B. Sessions, III
Alaska	Michael R. Spaan
Arizona	A. Melvin McDonald
Arkansas, E	George W. Proctor
Arkansas, W	W. Asa Hutchinson
California, N	Joseph P. Russoniello
California, E	Donald B. Ayer
California, C	Alexander H. Williams, III
California, S	Peter K. Nunez
Colorado	Robert N. Miller
Connecticut	Alan H. Nevas
Delaware	Joseph J. Farnan, Jr.
District of Columbia	Joseph E. diGenova
Florida, N	W. Thomas Dillard
Florida, M	Robert W. Merkle, Jr.
Florida, S	Stanley Marcus
Georgia, N	Larry D. Thompson
Georgia, M	Joe D. Whitley
Georgia, S	Hinton R. Pierce
Guam	David T. Wood
Hawaii	Daniel A. Bent
Idaho	Guy G. Hurlbutt
Illinois, N	Dan K. Webb
Illinois, S	Frederick J. Hess
Illinois, C	Gerald D. Fines
Indiana, N	R. Lawrence Steele, Jr.
Indiana, S	Sarah Evans Barker
Iowa, N	Evan L. Hultman
Iowa, S	Richard C. Turner
Kansas	Jim J. Marquez
Kentucky, E	Louis G. DeFalaise
Kentucky, W	Ronald E. Meredith
Louisiana, E	John Volz
Louisiana, M	Stanford O. Bardwell, Jr.
•	
Louisiana, W	Joseph S. Cage, Jr.
Maine	Richard S. Cohen
Maryland	J. Frederick Motz
Massachusetts	William F. Weld
Michigan, E	Leonard R. Gilman
Michigan, W	John A. Smietanka
Minnesota	James M. Rosenbaum
Mississippi, N	Glen H. Davidson
Mississippi, S	George L. Phillips
Missouri, E	Thomas E. Dittmeier
Missouri, W	Robert G. Ulrich

## UNITED STATES ATTORNEYS

## DISTRICT

## U.S. ATTORNEY

Manhana	
Montana	Byron H. Dunbar
Nebraska	Ronald D. Lahners
Nevada	Lamond R. Mills
New Hampshire	W. Stephen Thayer, III
New Jersey	W. Hunt Dumont
New Mexico	William L. Lutz
New York, N	Frederick J. Scullin, Jr.
New York, S	Rudolph W. Giuliani
New York, E	Raymond J. Dearie
New York, W	Salvatore R. Martoche
North Carolina, E	Samuel T. Currin
North Carolina, M	Kenneth W. McAllister
North Carolina, W	Charles R. Brewer
North Dakota	Rodney S. Webb
Ohio, N	J. William Petro
Ohio, S	Christopher K. Barnes
Oklahoma, N	Francis A. Keating, II
Oklahoma, E	Gary L. Richardson
Oklahoma, W	William S. Price
Oregon	Charles H. Turner
Pennsylvania, E	Edward S. G. Dennis, Jr.
Pennsylvania, M	David D. Queen
Pennsylvania, W	J. Alan Johnson
Puerto Rico	Daniel F. Lopez-Romo
Rhode Island	Lincoln C. Almond
South Carolina	Henry Dargan McMaster
South Dakota	Philip N. Hogen
Tennessee, E	John W. Gill, Jr.
Tennessee, M	Joe B. Brown
Tennessee, W	W. Hickman Ewing, Jr.
Texas, N	James A. Rolfe
Texas, S	Daniel K. Hedges
Texas, E	Robert J. Wortham
Texas, W	Edward C. Prado
Utah	Brent D. Ward
Vermont	George W. F. Cook
Virgin Islands	James W. Diehm
Virginia, E	Elsie L. Munsell
Virginia, W	John P. Alderman
Washington, E	John E. Lamp
Washington, W	Gene S. Anderson
West Virginia, N	William A. Kolibash
West Virginia, S	David A. Faber
Wisconsin. E	Joseph P. Stadtmueller
Wisconsin, W	
Wyoming	John R. Byrnes
North Mariana Islands	Richard A. Stacy David T. Wood
noten Hartana Istanus	David I. WOOD